
 
 
 

Shadow Health and Well Being Board 
 
Date: Wednesday, 14 December 2011 
Time: 
 

5.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Fiona Johnstone 
Tel: 0151 651 3914 
e-mail: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk 
Website:  
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES  
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
3. MINUTES  
 
 This is the first meeting of the formal Board therefore no previous 

minutes are available. 
 

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
5. SHADOW BOARD DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
6. JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT / JOINT HEALTH AND 

WELL BEING STRATEGY WORKSTREAM (Pages 15 - 36) 
 
7. DEVELOPING EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATIONS (Pages 37 - 40) 
 
8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
 13 March, 2012 

5pm – 8pm in Committee Room 2, Wallasey Town Hall 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 14 December 2011 Agenda 

Item 
4 

 
Report Title Terms of Reference for Wirral Shadow Health & 

Wellbeing Board 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Fiona Johnstone 
Director of Public Health 

 
Board development  
   

ü 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A ü 

Purpose For 
approval 

ü To note  To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper The attached document provides the initial terms of reference, including 

membership of the Wirral Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ n/a £ n/a £ n/a 

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

The remit of the Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board may change over 
time as the Health & Social Care Bill passes through Parliament, or as 
the Board develops during its shadow year.  To ensure these terms of 
reference remain fit for purpose they will be reviewed on an annual 
basis, or as required by the Board in response to development. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

These Terms of Reference will be published in the public domain on the 
meetings website for the Council. 
 
 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

1.  Publication of agreed Terms of Reference 
2.  Review suggested at 6 and 12 months during shadow year 
3.  Agreement of any sub-committees of the Board, in particular the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Executive Board. 
 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Development session of 
Shadow Health & Wellbeing 
Board 

21/09/11 It was agreed that the Board would not 
operate as a commissioning board.  As a 
result it was agreed to extend the core 
membership to include Portfolio holder for 
Social Care and Inclusion; Portfolio holder for 
Children’s Services and Lifelong 
Learning;Chief Executive, Voluntary & 
Community Action Wirral; Chief Executive, 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust; Chief Executive, Wirral 
Community NHS Trust; Chief Executive, 
Cheshire & Wirral Partnership Trust;  Chief 
Executive, Clatterbridge Centre for Oncology 
NHS  Foundation Trust 
 

Development session of 
Shadow Health & Wellbeing 
Board 

17/11/11 Agreed the draft terms of reference and 
amended to describe the additional 
membership as co-opted. 

List of 
Appendices 

1.   Terms of Reference for Wirral Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
Yes ü Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No ü 
  
Report Author:  Fiona Johnstone, Director of Public Health 
 
Contact details: Public Health Directorate 
   Old Market House 
   Hamilton Street 

Birkenhead 
Wirral CH41 5FL 

  
email: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk 
tel:  0151 651 3914 

Page 2



WIRRAL SHADOW HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The formation of the Health & Wellbeing Board has arisen from the fact that 

the Health and Social Care Bill currently making its way through Parliament 
will expand local authorities' responsibilities for ensuring integration in the 
approach to health and social care provision in its area, and (subject to the 
final legislation) will require the establishment of a formal Board. The initial 
draft Terms of Reference were agreed by Council Cabinet on 23rd June 2011 
to enable the first development meeting of the Shadow Board to take place.   

 
1.2  The Bill, if passed as currently drafted, will transfer to local authorities and the 

commissioning consortia in their area the existing duty in the NHS Act 2006 
requiring local authorities and PCTs to produce a Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment.  To this is added a further duty requiring the local authority and 
the commissioning consortia to prepare a joint health and wellbeing strategy, 
which is a "strategy for meeting the needs included in the [JSNA] by the 
exercise of functions of the authority, the NHS Commissioning Board or the 
consortia".  In preparing this strategy consideration must be given to the 
extent to which the needs could be met more effectively by arrangements 
under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 [arrangements between local 
authorities and NHS bodies] rather than in any other way. 

 
1.3 The JSNA and the joint health and wellbeing strategy are then given effect by 

another new requirement that local authorities and the commissioning 
consortia must have regard to the JSNA and the strategy when exercising any 
relevant functions and by a power on local authority Health and Wellbeing 
Boards to give their local authority an "opinion" on whether the authority is 
fulfilling the requirement to have regard to the JSNA and the strategy when 
performing its functions. 

 
1.4  The Health and Wellbeing Board is the new body which will carry out the local 

authority functions in relation to the JSNA and the joint health and wellbeing 
strategy.  It will be a committee of the local authority, but its membership is 
broad and determined in the Bill. 

 
1.5 In addition to the functions already described, HWBs will have further 

functions in relation to encouraging integrated working, including a duty to 
encourage those arranging for the provision of health or social care services 
in their area to work in an integrated manner, and in particular provide advice, 
assistance etc. to encourage the making of arrangements under Section 75 of 
the NHS Act 2006. 

 
1.6 In addition the local authority would have power to pass other functions to the 

HWB.  This reflects the message from the government that, while the HWB 
functions expressly set out in the Bill are reasonably limited and largely 
strategic in nature, it is anticipated that they will develop a wider key role in 
the area in relation to health and social care.  The Healthy Lives, Healthy 
People white paper states that the Bill gives "sufficient flexibility... for health 
and wellbeing boards to go beyond their minimum statutory duties to promote 
joining-up of a much broader range of local services for the benefit of their 

Page 3



local populations' health and wellbeing".  It refers to the wider localism agenda 
in setting out a vision of local government taking "innovative approaches to 
public health by involving new partners", which might put HWBs as the central 
co-ordinating point of a network of services commissioned from different types 
of provider. 

 
1.7 The membership of the HWB reflects the breadth of perspective needed for 

the preparation of the JSNA and the strategy, and to facilitate integrated 
working.  In response to the requirement to have at least one councillor of the 
local authority on the Board, Cabinet at its meeting on 4th February 2011 
agreed that the Wirral HWB would include all three party leaders.  Other 
required members are the directors of public health, adult social services and 
children's services, representatives of each commissioning consortia and a 
representative of the Local Healthwatch organisation.  In addition the HWB 
itself and the local authority (in consultation with the HWB) will have powers to 
include additional members.  The core membership of the Shadow Health & 
Wellbeing  board have thought carefully about the composition of our HWB to 
ensure that it balances the need for other perspectives with ensuring 
appropriate levels of control over the body's activities.  The role of provider 
organisations is one area where, despite the Board having a commissioning 
focus, with appropriate transparency and controls in place, it is felt that there 
is a greater benefit to inclusion than to exclusion.   

 
1.8 The Health & Wellbeing Board may also wish to consider establishing some 

working groups to take forward specific areas of work.  One workstream 
already identified in the development plan is the need to produce a Joint 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy informed by our Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA).  A multi-agency group called the JSNA Executive Board 
exists, and it is proposed that this be recognised as a sub-committee of the 
Health & Wellbeing Board.  Any further sub-committees will be considered by 
the Board as it gains an understanding of how it wishes to work. 

Page 4



Appendix 1 
 
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE (version 1.3) – Changes to the original draft TOR which 
went to Cabinet in June 2011 are shown in red. 
 
WIRRAL HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 
 
Purpose 
 
The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board will not be responsible for directly 
commissioning services, but will provide oversight, strategic direction and 
coordination of the following activities. 
 
1. To oversee and implement the creation of a Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board in 

readiness to assume its statutory responsibilities from April 2013. 
 
2. To propose recommendations regarding this work to:  

• Wirral Council Cabinet 
• NHS Cheshire, Warrington & Wirral Cluster PCT 
• Wirral GP Commissioning Consortia 

 
3. To drive a collaborative approach to commissioning of improved health and care 

services which improve the health and wellbeing of local people. 
 
4. To develop a shared understanding of the needs of the local community through the 

development of an agreed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 
 
5. To seek to meet those needs through leading on the development and publication of 

a high-level Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
6. To consider options for the development of HealthWatch in Wirral ensuring that 

appropriate engagement and involvement within existing patient and service user 
involvement groups takes place. 

 
7. To consider and take advantage of opportunities to more closely integrate health and 

social care services in commissioning and provision. 
 
8.   To review the financial and organisational implications of joint and integrated working 

across health and social care services, ensuring that performance and quality 
standards of health and social care services are met, and represent value for money 
across the whole system. 

 
9. To establish a key forum for local democratic accountability relating to commissioning 

against agreed health outcomes. 
 
10. To consider how best the Shadow Health & Wellbeing Board can work with the Local 

Strategic Partnership and ensure that the relationship is productive and does not 
duplicate activity. 

 
11. To identify and act on changes that may be required following the enactment of the 

Health and Social Care Bill in order to establish the Statutory Health and Wellbeing 
Board to replace the Shadow Board. 

 
 

Page 5



Membership 
 
Board membership as outlined in Health & 
Social Care Bill 
 

Shadow Board Membership 

Locally elected representatives  
 
Chief Executive Council 
 
NHS Commissioners (PBC) 
Representative of NHS Commissioning Board 
 
 
Director of Public Health 
Director of Adult Social Services 
Director of Children & Young People’s 
Services 
 
HealthWatch 
 
 

Core Membership 
 
All three party leaders 
 
A representative from each of the three GP 
Commissioning consortia 
 
Chief Executive Wirral Council 
 
A representative of the NHS Cheshire, 
Warrington & Wirral Cluster Board 
 
Director of Public Health 
Director of Adult Social Services 
Director of Children & Young People’s 
Services 
 
LINks 
 
Co-opted membership 
 
Portfolio holder for Social Care and Inclusion 
Portfolio holder for Children’s Services and 
Lifelong Learning 
 
Chief Executive, Voluntary & Community 
Action Wirral 
 
Chief Executive, Wirral University Teaching 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
 
Chief Executive, Wirral Community NHS Trust 
Chief Executive, Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership Trust  
Chief Executive, Clatterbridge Centre for 
Oncology NHS  Foundation Trust 
 
 

 
Representatives of other bodies may be invited to participate in Board discussions, or co-
opted, to support effective decision-making.  Such representatives should be invited bearing 
in mind the principles of fairness, equality and transparency. 
 
The Board will be supported by appropriate administrative support provided from the public 
health directorate. 
 
Meetings 
 
Formal meetings will be held quarterly.  Development sessions will also be held for Board 
members during the year as required. 
 

Page 6



Agendas and minutes of formal meetings of the Board will be published on the Council 
website. 
 
Chair 
 
The Leader of the Council will chair the Health & Wellbeing Board.  
 
Decisions 
 
Where a decision is required, that decision will be made by agreement among a majority of 
members present.  Where a decision needs to be ratified by one or more of the statutory 
agencies, the ratification process will be in accordance with the agreed process within that 
particular agency. 
 
Minutes 
 
Minutes of the proceedings of each meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board will be drawn 
up, circulated and agreed as a correct record at the subsequent meeting, once any required 
amendments have been incorporated. 
 
Support to the health & wellbeing board 
 
Support to the Board will be provided through the Public Health Directorate. 
 
Review 
 
The membership and terms of reference of the Health & Wellbeing Board will be regularly 
reviewed (at least annually) to ensure that they remain relevant and up to date. 
 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



  

WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 14 December 2011 Agenda Item 5 
 
Report Title Shadow Board Development Plan – Building the 

Platform 
Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Public Health 

 
Board development  
   

ü 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

Other (please specify, referring 
to the TOR) 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A ü 

Purpose For 
approval 

ü To note  To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper This paper outlines the main development programmes that the Board 

will undertake in its initial shadow year. 
 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ 40,000 £ none This is funding received to 
be spent on facilitation 
support from the National 
Leadership Council under 
its Place Based 
Leadership programme 

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

Engagement with the development activities.  In order to mitigate 
against poor engagement from the membership, all members of the 
board have been asked to nominate themselves to be involved in the 
work of particular development projects. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

Community engagement is one of the proposed development projects 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

1.    That the development programmes and member links are 
agreed. 

2.   That the leads for each programme should work with our 
assigned facilitators to take the project forward. 

3.   That progress reports on each of the projects should be 
received at the Health and Wellbeing Board on a quarterly 
basis. 

 
 
 
 

  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



  

Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Development  session of 
Health & Wellbeing Board 

17/11/11 This final draft was considered at the Board 

   
List of 
Appendices 

 

 
Yes ü Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No ü 
  
Report Author(s): Professor Laurie McMahon, Loop2,  

Fiona Johnstone, Director of Public Health 
 
Contact details: Public Health Directorate 
   Old Market House 
   Hamilton Street 

Birkenhead 
Wirral CH41 5FL 

  
email: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk 
tel:  0151 651 3914 

Page 10



  

 
 
1. Background 

 
Introduction 
 
On the 21st September the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) held its first 
development meeting in shadow form.  Wirral had been successful in becoming one of small 
number of pilot sites for a ‘place based leadership’ (PBL) initiative sponsored by the National 
Leadership Academy.  In their application Wirral planned to use the resources provided 
through the PBL project to help establish their Health and Wellbeing Board. The Wirral 
project – given the working title of ‘Building the Platform’ – was initiated with a series of 
telephone interviews with senior managers and professionals from local government, health 
and third sector agencies across the peninsular.  
 
During its initial development meetings the Board members have considered a report 
prepared by Professor Laurie McMahon (from Loop2 – one of the two providers selected for 
the Wirral PBL project.  The other facilitator allocated to the Board is Bruce Havelock, from 
the company GE) which looked at perceptions about partnership working, the expectations 
about roles and relationships around the new HWB and the PBL issues that might be tackled 
through the programme. 
   
By the end of the meeting these had been narrowed down to six candidate Building the 
Platform projects – set out below: 
 

 
 
 
This short report outlines the areas of work that might be progressed through the PBL 
programme.  This follows. 
 

Page 11



  

 
2. Candidate Projects 
 
There was agreement that the most productive approach to developing the confidence and 
competence of the Board would be through ‘action learning’.  The following six themes have 
emerged as appropriate candidates for inclusion in the Building the Platform project and the 
resources that go with it.  The general approach to each of these was discussed but set out 
below is a more detail about how best they can be delivered.   
 
2.1 Making Difficult Decisions  
 
In the interviews undertaken with stakeholders there was reference to the effects of the 
Wirral ‘double whammy’ of demographic change driving up demand occurring at the same 
time as a rapidly deteriorating financial situation for both the health and local authorities. This 
would mean that from its inception, the HWB – with a new membership and remit - would 
have to make some extremely tough strategic decisions - the like of which had not been 
previously experienced. It was felt best if the leaders represented on the Board could 
develop their ability to handle such decisions in a safe but realistic learning environment 
during the shadow phase rather than wait until real lives and real resources were involved. 

The ‘Making Difficult Decisions’ or MDD process has been developed by Loop2 for just these 
situations.  It involves using an imaginary setting and a series of highly realistic scenarios or 
dilemmas of the type that will be faced by the Wirral HWB.  Each dilemma is backed by 
sufficient information about the context and the evidence to inform the deliberations of Board 
members. With the help of expert facilitation they work together to decide how best the issue 
should be resolved.  As the members work through the dilemmas a workable approach to 
decision making emerges based on a better understanding of each others’ values and 
mindsets and the principles and priorities of their host organizations. This outcome will be 
carefully documented, but the real value of the process is that it provides a safe, pragmatic 
and reliable way to improve place based decision making and to prepare placed based 
leaders for making difficult decisions for real.  The MDD process will require a morning or 
afternoon.  

 
2.2 Board Leadership Behaviours  
 
It was suggested during the meeting that as the HWB was a new arrangement, new 
relationships and ways of working together would need to be established at an early stage.   

 
It was felt that a rigorous process was required to develop a ‘memorandum of understanding’ 
between the members about their behaviour both inside and beyond Board meetings.  A 
process will be prepared for consideration by the Board.  

 
2.3 The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Plan.  
 
It was clear that the JSNA should provide the evidence base for the Joint HWB Plan.  This 
PBL project is about developing a robust planning cycle that moves from the JSNA to a 
HWB plan, through to implementation and on to evaluation.   

 
This is a complex process that needs to be carefully planned.  As the first stage Loop2 will 
design and run a facilitated (half day) planning workshop for a range of local leaders to 
establish - in collaboration - what needs to be done and by whom.  The existing Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment Executive Board members will be involved in, and provide 
leadership to this project. 

Page 12



  

 
2.4  Extending Engagement  
 
A recurrent theme in the interviews was the need for the Board to find ways of going beyond 
the current (and quite successful) engagement mechanisms and deliberate directly with the 
public about health and wellbeing issues before attitudes became polarised.  It was 
suggested that it would be difficult to make or implement ‘difficult decisions’  unless the 
public were informed about the issues and generally accepting of the need for change.  Loop 
2 would design and facilitate a 2-3 hour meeting in which a group of relevant local leaders 
(supported by specialist expertise) would consider the issues, learn from previous 
experience on the Wirral and establish how the depth and reach of the Board’s public 
engagement could be extended. The output would be a full development proposal to be 
brought to a subsequent meeting of the Board.  This engagement strategy meeting would 
take 2-3 hours.  

 
2.5  Understanding how the Health & Wellbeing Board can support the reshaping of 

services 
 
it was evident from the interviews that members anticipated that there would have to be quite 
radical service redesign in order to increase productivity without an undue loss of service 
quality or access.  Although the managing the reconfiguration itself was not seen as part of 
the Board’s role, the development of a shared understanding of the need for change and a 
common agreement about the integrated change strategy required was seen as central to 
the Board’s function. Developing such a strategy can only be achieved through a process of 
structured negotiation between stakeholders.  It was suggested that we run a demonstration 
project that draws on Loop2’s experience and expertise to learn how to do this.  Long term 
conditions (or specific LTC services) were seen as a good service to serve as the focus for 
the reconfiguration project.  

 
The design would be bespoke to the LTC services selected and to Wirral’s circumstances.  It 
was suggested that a small design group consisting of Board members and others meet for 
2-3 hours to develop an outline process for Board approval. Loop2 would then support the 
Board in the process of developing with stakeholders - especially users, their families and 
the clinicians and carers involved - a shared reconfiguration strategy.   

 
2.6   The Public Health Programme  
 
Two aspects of this emerged during the meeting.  The first was the need for the Board to 
learn how to work together and combine resources to address the stark inequalities that 
existed on the Wirral. It was suggested that an approach that supports the development of a 
‘wellness’ services approach would be valuable.  Within this, particular public health issues 
may be addressed in more depth.   

Linked to this is the transition of public health from an NHS function to a fully integrated 
health and wellbeing function within the Council.  This provides an opportunity to realise the 
full implications of a move towards ‘place based public health’ where the public health issues 
of prescribed communities are addressed together.  We suggest that we run a half day 
design workshop with public health people and others in order to establish how the transition 
might best be managed.  

 
 

Page 13



  

 
3. Other Issues and Next Steps 
 
The next step is for these outline proposals to be developed into a fuller delivery plan with 
timescale and outputs. It was agreed that members of the Board would indicate which of the 
projects they would like to be involved in and sponsor.  All project sponsors would be 
accountable to the Board for their project’s progress and the delivery of the outcomes.  
 
Board members have indicated their interest in involvement with the projects as shown in the 
table below. 
 
Project Project Sponsors and Member Leads 
‘Making Difficult Decisions Sheena Cumiskey 
Board Leadership Behaviours Sheena Cumiskey 
JSNA and the Joint Strategic Health Strategy Fiona Johnstone 
Extending Engagement Annette Roberts, Sheena Cumiskey 
Understanding how the HWB can support 
the reshaping of services 

Sheena Cumiskey 

Public Health Programme and Transition Fiona Johnstone 
 
 
It was also agreed that members should indicate which order they felt the projects could be 
addressed in.  A suggestion from one of the Board members has been received, which is as 
follows:   
 
Board Leadership Behaviours 
Making Difficult Decisions 
JSNA and the Joint Strategic Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
Extending Engagement 
Public Health Programmes and Transition 
Understanding how the HWB can support the reshaping of services. 
 
Clearly a number of these might run in parallel, but it was felt that the reshaping of services 
should be addressed following the building of relationships and determination of priorities for 
the HWB. 
 
It is requested that Board Members agree both their project links and the order in which the 
projects should be addressed at the formal meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 14 December 2011 Agenda Item 6 
 
Report Title Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: supporting the 

Health & Wellbeing Board outcomes 
Responsible Board 
Member(s) 

Director of Public Health; Interim Director of Adult Social 
Services; Interim Director of Children & Young People; Clinical 
Commissioning Group Representatives 

 
Board development  
   

 

JSNA/JHWS ü 

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

  

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A ü 

Purpose For 
approval 

ü To note  To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper This paper outlines how the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for 

Wirral is being developed and refreshed.  It also proposes a timeline 
and set of activities to develop the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

£ n/a £  £  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

Failure to align commissioning plans to clear local outcomes – we 
would hope to have the draft Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
presented to the Board in June/July so that it can be agreed, and 
members who are commissioners can ensure that their plans for 
2013/14 are aligned to the identified outcomes. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

We would expect significant and wide engagement in the development 
of the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy.  A wide range of stakeholders, 
including the voluntary sector are already engaged in developing the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

That the Board: 
1. agree that the JSNA Executive Board should become a sub-

group of the Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 
2. note this report and agree to receive regular progress reports 

from the JSNA Executive Board 
 
3. agree the suggested actions and timescale for the production of 

the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Not previously submitted   

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



elsewhere 
   
List of 
Appendices 

Appendix 1: Terms of Reference JSNA Executive Board 
Appendix 2: Current JSNA Workplan 
Appendix 3: Springboard for Action key points 

 
Yes ü Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No ü 
  
Report Author:  John Highton 

JSNA Programme Manager 
  
 
Contact details: NHS Wirral 

3rd Floor, West Wing 
Old Market House 
Hamilton Street 
Birkenhead 
Merseyside 
CH41 5FL 

 
Tel: 0151 651 0011 ext 1496 
john.highton@wirral.nhs.uk 

 

Page 16



Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA):  Supporting the Health & Wellbeing 
Board outcomes 
 
1. Introduction  
 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA is ‘a process to identify the current and future 
health and wellbeing needs of a population in a local authority area”. (DH Guidance) 
 
The JSNA intends to be a systematic review of the health and wellbeing needs of the local 
population, informing local priorities, strategies and targets and leading to a review of 
commissioning priorities that will improve health and wellbeing outcomes and reduce 
inequalities throughout the Borough. 
. 
Information from Council, NHS and other partners is collected and collated to inform the 
JSNA and this reflects the important role that all organisations and sectors have (statutory, 
voluntary, community and faith) to improve the health and wellbeing of Wirral’s residents.  
 
This paper sets out the JSNA Workplan as it is intended to support the Health & Wellbeing 
Board activities and outcomes through providing regular updates on the activity undertaken 
and progress made in developing the JSNA  
 
2. Background 
 
The first and second Wirral JSNAs were produced in 2008//09 and 2009/10 respectively. 
 
The iterative and continuous process that underpins the JSNA process has been possible 
since March 2011 when the delivery of Wirral’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
has been supported by a Programme Lead (seconded from Wirral Council) and Senior 
Analyst who will lead the review of current content, develop future information for inclusion 
and work across sectors and partners to enhance the involvement, participation and 
communication of Wirral’s JSNA and provision of a future Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
3. Local approach to JSNA 
 
The work of the JSNA is directed through the JSNA Executive Board, whose members 
include the Directors of Adult Social Services, Children’s Trust and Public Health, GP 
Commissioning Consortia Chief Officers and Chief Executive of Voluntary & Community 
Action Wirral (VCAW) and articulated through the JSNA Workplan. This plan recognises the 
need for significant and continued action in relation to fulfill the statutory requirement to 
produce a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The terms of reference for the JSNA 
Executive Board can be seen in Appendix 1. 
 
In order to meet this expectation a JSNA Workplan has been produced that provides the 
framework for undertaking the required activity that underpins the development and delivery 
of both the statutory requirement and the development of the continuous and iterative 
process that uniquely defines the JSNA.        
 
3.1 JSNA Workplan 
 
The workplan has a wide range of key activities and actions that essentially cover three 
defined areas. They are structure, developmental and culture. 
 
Structure – in order to facilitate long term understanding, involvement engagement and use 
of JSNA in directing needs for local commissioning and service planning it is important to 
develop the most appropriate local working environment. The work activity in this area 
covers those fundamental practices to enhance the ability to achieve long lasting outcomes. 
This includes such aspects as providing the latest documents, considering future policy & 

Page 17



guidance on JSNA and engagement with variety of data users, GPs, sectors and over what 
range of methods we use to involve everyone in JSNA. 
 
Developmental – with a strong foundation offered through the ongoing structural work it 
allows us to undertake more detailed work that further enables improvements and 
developments for the use of the JSNA. This includes such aspects as Exploring new needs 
and aspirations, considering how we extend use of current partner consultation processes to 
include JSNA and working with a wider group of commissioners & chapter authors 
 
Culture & Intelligence – with ever increasing involvement, engagement and use of the 
JSNA as a means to understand the health and wellbeing needs of the local population, 
informing local priorities, strategies and commissioning it will offer the chance to create a 
greater ‘joint intelligence’ approach to understanding population needs. This collective and 
collaborative opportunity is being moved forward, through greater involvement, and will 
develop further by further joint use of evidence in decision making processes. This includes 
such aspects as how JSNA can support future business planning as well as commissioning 
alignment, developing Joint Intelligence and embedding collective and continuous 
engagement. 
 
The current JSNA Workplan is included as Appendix 2. 
 
4. Wirral’s Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 
A key outcome to be achieved for the shadow Health & Wellbeing will be the production of 
Wirral’s first Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy. The suggested timeframe for this work to 
occur is detailed below as highlighted at the board meeting on 17th November.   
 
November/December 2011  
 

• Provide H&WB Board with background to process  
• H&WB Board define approach  

 
January/February 2012 
 

• Engage far and wide to confirm or otherwise the key issues 
 
March/April 2012 
 

• Determine priorities  
 
May/June 2012 
 

• Drafting the strategy 
 
July 2012 
 

• Presented to H&WBB and other associated structures 
 
Key activities to achieve the presentation in July of a draft strategy for the board will include: 
scoping the work and planning engagement around those identified key issues for Wirral; 
providing board with the detail in order for it to consider key priorities and transferring those 
considerations into the draft joint strategy  
 

Page 18



5. Reporting to Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
JSNA Executive Board will provide the Health & Wellbeing Board members with regular 
updates on its activity, the progress of the workplan and development of the Joint Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
This progress report will also offer some focus on those aspects identified in the national 
guidance provided by Local Government Improvement and Development (LGID) in its JSNA 
Springboard for Action document discussed at the HWBB on 17th November 2011 (Please 
see Appendix 3). These aspects are considered as key and fundamental to providing a 
JSNA that meets local needs and expectations.   
 
6. Recommendations 
 
6.1 The Board are asked to agree that the JSNA Executive Board should become a sub-

group of the Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 
6.2 Health & Wellbeing Board members are asked to note this report and agree to 

receive regular progress reports from the JSNA Executive Board   
 
6.3 Health & Wellbeing Board members are asked to agree to the suggested actions and 

timescale for the production of the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy   
 
 
Appendices  
 

• Appendix 1 
 

o JSNA Executive Board - Terms of Reference 
 

• Appendix 2 
 

o JSNA Workplan 2011/12 
 

• Appendix 3 
 

o LGID ‘Springboard for Action’ – JSNA Guidance - key considerations for 
Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 1 
    

Wirral Wirral Wirral Wirral JSNA Executive JSNA Executive JSNA Executive JSNA Executive Board Board Board Board     
Terms of ReferenceTerms of ReferenceTerms of ReferenceTerms of Reference    ((((November November November November 2011201120112011))))    

 

1111 BackgroundBackgroundBackgroundBackground    

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007) placed a duty upon 
Local Authorities and Primary Care Trusts to work together to produce a Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) for their local population.  

The 2011 Health & Social Care Bill proposes placing Health and Wellbeing Boards on a 
statutory footing and ascribing specific new functions to them, in addition to joining-up the 
NHS, social care, public health and other local services.  

 

2222 PurposePurposePurposePurpose of the Executive Board: of the Executive Board: of the Executive Board: of the Executive Board:    

Wirral’s early implementer Health and Wellbeing Board will be required to lead the 
continued development of the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) to provide a 
strong information and intelligence system.  

 The Health and Wellbeing Board will also lead on the development of a Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) which is underpinned by the JSNA. Subject to agreement of 
the Bill, a legal obligation will be placed on NHS and local authority commissioners to refer 
to the JSNA and to have regard to the JHWS in exercising their commissioning functions. 

Therefore the purpose for Wirral’s JSNA Executive Board is to give strategic direction and 
overall programme management to the JSNA process so that it meets current and future 
demands.  

 

3333 Aim Aim Aim Aim of of of of the the the the Executive BoardExecutive BoardExecutive BoardExecutive Board::::    

3.1 JSNA Executive Board will lead the ongoing development and utilisation of robust joint 
intelligence and strategic needs assessment (JSNA) to inform strategic planning and 
strategic commissioning of services in Wirral through Wirral’s Health & Wellbeing Boards 
Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

 

Page 21



 

 

    
4444 Core Core Core Core ObjectivesObjectivesObjectivesObjectives::::    

4.1 Ensure the development of the JSNA directly supports the production of the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy for Wirral 

4.2 Influence local leadership to embed JSNA within processes for the planning and 
coordination of local services and support key commissioning and service provision 
decisions (local structure) 

4.3 Improve the co-ordinated approach to commissioning activity, across Council 
departments and partner organisations through the utilisation of the JSNA. 

4.4 Direct the development and future use of JSNA through the statutory Health & Wellbeing 
Board.... 

4.5 Facilitate the development of working relationships with GP Consortia and their use of 
JSNA in the commissioning of services in relation to the Health & Wellbeing Board and 
the production of its Health & Wellbeing Strategy for Wirral. 

4.6 Positively influence and develop the working relationships with all local partners and 
organisations with regard to their systematic use and content development of JSNA 
specifically the commissioning of services, the future delivery of Wirral’s Health & 
Wellbeing Board and its associated Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

4.7 Direct the development of opportunities for public and wider community, service users 
and providers as contributors to Wirral’s JSNA 

4.8 Oversee the development and deployment of joint intelligence and data resources across 
the health and wellbeing strategy board partners and beyond 

4.9 Ensures the statutory functions relating to JSNA are met in full and relevant documents 
are completed and provided in a timely manner. 

4.10 Promote the benefits of JSNA utilisation to all partners 
 
5555 Membership:Membership:Membership:Membership:    

5.1 Representation will be designated from the following roles and functions: 
 

RoleRoleRoleRole    FunctionFunctionFunctionFunction    Suggested Suggested Suggested Suggested 
representativerepresentativerepresentativerepresentative    

Named and Named and Named and Named and 
briefed deputybriefed deputybriefed deputybriefed deputy    

Director of Adult Social 
Services 

Howard Cooper To be added 

Director of Children’s 
Trust 

David Armstrong To be added 

Three statutory 
lead Directors 
 
 

Director of Public Health Fiona Johnstone To be added 

Partnership 
Joint 
Intelligence 

Head of Performance 
and Public Health 
Intelligence 

Tony Kinsella To be added 

Page 22



 

 

lead officer 

Wirral GP 
Commissioning 
Consortia 

Paul Edwards 
Chief Operating 

Officer 

To be added 

Andrew Cooper 
Chief Operating 

Officer 

Wirral Health 
Commissioning 
Consortia 

Lorna Quigley 
Chief Operating 

Officer 

To be added 

GP Consortia 
 

Wirral NHS Alliance Ian Stewart 
Chief Operating 

Officer 

To be added 

 GP Lead To be agreed To be added 

Others  To be added 
 

To be added To be added 

Others  To be added 
 

To be added To be added 

Others  To be added 
 

To be added To be added 

Chair of JSNA 
Engagement 
Group  

Chief Executive,  
Voluntary & Community 
Action Wirral (VCAW) 

Annette Roberts 
 

To be added 

Page 23



 

 

6666 AAAAccountabilityccountabilityccountabilityccountability an an an and Obligationsd Obligationsd Obligationsd Obligations    

6.1 JSNA is a duty of the Local Authority and NHS under the leadership of the Directors of 
Public Health, Adult Social Services and Children’s Services. This will be exercised 
through the JSNA Executive Board (and structure) and reporting directly to the Health & 
Wellbeing Board  

6.2 Health & Wellbeing Board requires the JSNA Executive Board to support the work in 
developing the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy as a sub committee of the full board. 
Reporting and accountability will be required to the HWBB on a regular and timely basis  

6.3 Each Executive Board member is responsible for establishing communication links with 
their relevant networks around JSNA in an appropriate and timely manner.  

6.4 Each Executive Board member will ensure decisions relating to the JSNA will be 
communicated through their sphere of influence and provide officer support in the 
completion of any associated actions 

6.5 Each Executive Board member acknowledges that they are entering into these 
arrangements and will participate in developing the work of the Executive Board on the 
basis of the demands and necessities of the Health & Social Care Bill and mutual trust.  

6.6 Each Partner agrees to adopt a policy of mutual openness about information and their 
intentions relevant to the remit of the Executive Board.  

6.7 Where decisions of the Board require ratification by other bodies, the relevant Executive 
Board Member shall seek such ratification promptly following the Board’s 
recommendations.  

    
7777 JSNA Programme Management: JSNA Programme Management: JSNA Programme Management: JSNA Programme Management:     

7.1 The Project Management for Wirral’s JSNA is currently led by NHS Wirral through the 
JSNA Programme Lead. This project management role includes:  

7.1.1 Managing the JSNA on a day to day basis on behalf of the Executive Board and 
wider partners  

7.1.2 Through the JSNA Programme Lead ensuring the implementation of the work plan 
and reporting progress to the Executive Board 

7.1.3 Developing the accessibility of supporting information and data sources including 
linking to the JSNA data group  

7.1.4 Ensuring interactive/on-line version remains current to available information   
    
8888 Advisory MembersAdvisory MembersAdvisory MembersAdvisory Members    

8.1 The JSNA Executive Board can call upon officers to be in attendance at meetings as 
Advisory Members of the Board: 

Page 24



 

 

8.2 The role of Advisory Members is to advise assist and provide information to the Board 
and where appropriate participate in discussions at meetings of the Board. 

8.3 An Advisory Member may nominate a substitute to attend in their place, subject to 
notifying the Chair before the relevant meeting and that deputy being suitably able to 
provide the information and analysis seen as required. 

8.4 The Board may invite any person to the Board’s meetings to advise assist and provide 
information to the Board as it sees fit on a non-voting basis. 

    
9999 Designated Task GroupsDesignated Task GroupsDesignated Task GroupsDesignated Task Groups    

9.1 Task Groups will be established to carry out programmes of work as required by the 
JSNA Executive Board. These will include: 

9.2 JSNA Engagement Task GroupJSNA Engagement Task GroupJSNA Engagement Task GroupJSNA Engagement Task Group - to ensure the involvement of voluntary, community, 
third sector, patient and public in the development and interpretation of health and 
wellbeing joint intelligence.  

9.2.1 Membership will include an engagement facilitator from either the Local Authority 
or NHS Wirral and representatives from LINK and VCAW. Further membership 
and terms of reference will be developed by the core group. 

9.3 Joint Joint Joint Joint Intelligence Group Intelligence Group Intelligence Group Intelligence Group (formerly Wir(formerly Wir(formerly Wir(formerly Wirral ral ral ral Research & Intelligence GroupResearch & Intelligence GroupResearch & Intelligence GroupResearch & Intelligence Group)))) – to bring 
together analytical skills from a wide range of relevant organisations to plan and carry out 
an annual work programme.  

9.3.1 Membership will include representatives were possible from Community Safety, 
Housing, Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, Merseyside Police, Wirral Drug & 
Alcohol Team (DAAT), NHS Wirral, Wirral University Teaching Hospital (WUTH), 
Dept. of Adult Social Services (DASS), Children and Young People’s Department 
(CYPD), Neighbourhood Management and other organisations able to contribute 
to the data and information requirements of the JSNA. 

9.4 The Task Groups will designate a representative/s as Chair/Deputy Chair of the Task 
Group to carry out the following tasks:  

9.4.1 Ensure agendas, minutes and meetings are arranged efficiently and papers 
(pre/post) are circulated to Task Group members accordingly.  

9.4.2 Arrange for minutes from the Task Group to be provided to the administrator for 
the Executive Board for distribution to Board members  

9.5 All Task Groups should have Terms of Reference established and in case of task and 
finish groups then the clear identification of end date/ completion tasks. Membership 
must always reflect the coverage of JSNA across partners and other organisations as 
appropriate and possible. 

9.6 Attend the JSNA Executive Board as requested by the Board to consider specific aspects 
of the JSNA work plan and raise issues agreed with the Task Group / ensure ongoing 
communication between the groups and feedback on work plan progress. 

Page 25



 

 

    
10101010 Public StatementPublic StatementPublic StatementPublic Statementssss    

10.1 Public statements on behalf of the Executive Board can only be made by the Chair and 
with the prior approval of the Executive Board. Where that is not possible for reasons of 
time or expediency, any such actions taken by the Chair shall be reported to the next 
meeting of the Board. 

11111111 Administration:Administration:Administration:Administration:    

11.1 Minutes will be taken by an NHS Wirral administrator and will be distributed within two 
weeks of the meeting. 

11.1.1 This will include:  

11.1.2 Attending to take minutes of the meeting;  

11.1.3 Keeping a record of matters arising and issues to be carried forward to the next 
meeting;  

11.1.4 Providing appropriate support to the Chair;  

11.1.5 Collating papers for meetings, circulating them before the meeting;  
    
12121212 Executive Executive Executive Executive Board GovernanceBoard GovernanceBoard GovernanceBoard Governance        

12.1 Frequency of meetingsFrequency of meetingsFrequency of meetingsFrequency of meetings: 

12.1.1 Initially Meetings will be held once every six weeks with ad hoc meetings being 
held if necessary. 

12.1.2 Following this initial development period meetings will revert to being held once 
every three months but with the proviso of ad hoc meetings if necessary. 

12.1.3 Task Groups will meet as determined by their work programmes. 

12.1.4 Meetings will be held at NHS Wirral - Old Market House unless otherwise agreed 
by Executive Board members 

12.212.212.212.2 Chairing of meetingsChairing of meetingsChairing of meetingsChairing of meetings    

12.2.1 Meetings shall be chaired by Director of Public Health 

12.2.2 In the absence of the nominated chair one of the other two directors shall chair 
the meeting 

12.3 Attendance at meetingsAttendance at meetingsAttendance at meetingsAttendance at meetings: 

12.3.1 Members are expected to attend meetings as far as possible. If they are unable 
to attend they are expected to send a fully briefed named deputy as their 
representative to ensure their area of expertise is reflected on the Executive 
Board. (See table on page 2) 

Page 26



 

 

12.3.2 Other colleagues will attend the meeting by invitation as required.  

12.412.412.412.4 Quorum Quorum Quorum Quorum     

12.4.1 A minimum of four members will need to be present for the meeting to be 
considered able to decide on matters.  

12.4.2 The membership should include at least: 

12.4.2.1 One of the three directors of public health, adult social services or 
children’s services as chair or deputy 

12.4.2.2 One of the GP Consortia lead officers or GP leads 

12.4.2.3 One of representatives of Health Information team 

12.512.512.512.5 DeclDeclDeclDeclaration or conflict of interestaration or conflict of interestaration or conflict of interestaration or conflict of interest    

12.5.1 Members must declare any conflict of interest in a matter being considered by the 
Executive Board, that  

12.5.1.1 Arises from their personal circumstances, or 

12.5.1.2 Arises in respect of the Partner which they represent. 

12.5.2 Any Executive Board member who declares an interest or conflict of interest may, 
at the discretion of the Chair, 

12.5.2.1 Be required to leave the meeting while the matter is discussed; or 

12.5.2.2 Remain in the room but not participate in the discussion;  

12.612.612.612.6 Leaving the BoardLeaving the BoardLeaving the BoardLeaving the Board    

12.6.1 A Board Member shall cease to be a Member of the Board if: 

12.6.1.1 He or she resigns; 

12.6.1.2 The Partner notifies the Board of a change of representative; or 

12.6.1.3 The Partner ceases to exist. 

12.6.2 Should any Partner wish to withdraw from the Board, six months notice must be 
given in advance to the Chair of the Board. 

12.712.712.712.7 Access to MeetingsAccess to MeetingsAccess to MeetingsAccess to Meetings    

12.7.1 The JSNA Executive Board is NOT a public meeting and as such is not open to 
public to attend 

Page 27



 

 

12.812.812.812.8 Alterations to the Alterations to the Alterations to the Alterations to the Terms of Reference Terms of Reference Terms of Reference Terms of Reference     

12.8.1 The Executive Board will have flexibility to amend the terms of reference as and 
when agreed at meetings, up to and including 12 months from its first meeting in 
2011.  

12.8.2 Thereafter and subject to the following provisions, the Terms of Reference and 
associated documentation may be altered at a meeting of the Board.  

12.912.912.912.9 DissolutionDissolutionDissolutionDissolution    

12.9.1 The Board may be dissolved where: 

12.9.2 The Members have agreed at a Executive Board Meeting that the Board 
should be dissolved; and 

12.9.3 Where the Members have agreed a detailed exit strategy which addresses 
adequately all the consequences of dissolution including: 

12.9.3.1 The relationship with Wirral’s Health & Wellbeing Board 

12.9.3.2 The relationship with service providers 

12.9.3.3 Any financial impact of dissolution 

12.9.3.4 All other relevant issues, including the need to ensure continued 
compliance with relevant statutory provisions 

12.9.4 Where the Members have agreed to ensure that the minimum of disruption 
is caused to service users in Wirral by the dissolution 

12.1012.1012.1012.10 Review Review Review Review     

12.10.1 Terms of ReferenceTerms of ReferenceTerms of ReferenceTerms of Reference will be reviewed after 6 months and thereafter at least 
annually. 

12.10.2 MembershipMembershipMembershipMembership will be reviewed after 6 months and thereafter at least 
annually. 

12.10.3 JSNA JSNA JSNA JSNA Work Work Work Work PPPPlanlanlanlan will be reviewed after 3 months and thereafter at least 
every 6 months. 

12.10.4 Full JSNAFull JSNAFull JSNAFull JSNA will be reviewed at least annually. 

12.10.5 Sections of the JSNASections of the JSNASections of the JSNASections of the JSNA will be reviewed as and when new information 
becomes available and version control will be maintained 

12.10.6 Chair Chair Chair Chair will be confirmed annually at a meeting of the Executive Board. 
 

Page 28



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

1
W

ir
ra

l J
S

N
A

 2
01

1 
- 

20
12

2 3
S

tr
u

ct
u

ra
l

4
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

(s
ta

g
e 

1)

5
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
&

 C
u

rr
en

t 
u

se
rs

6
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r 

co
nt

ac
t w

ith
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ou
ps

 o
n 

JS
N

A
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

its
 fu

ll 
ut

ili
sa

tio
n 

in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s

7
W

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 w
id

en
 J

S
N

A
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
ba

se
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ot
he

r 
el

em
en

ts
 th

at
 d

ef
in

e 
ne

ed
s 

bu
t

al
so

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

ss
et

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 u

po
n 

M
an

ag
e 

a 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 T

as
k,

 o
r 

T
as

k 
 &

 F
in

is
h

gr
ou

ps
, t

o 
su

pp
or

t J
S

N
A

 w
or

k

8
Q

ue
st

io
n 

us
er

s 
on

 u
se

 o
f J

S
N

A
 to

 d
riv

e 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

9
C

re
at

e 
re

gu
la

r 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 d
iv

er
se

 g
ro

up
s 

of
 H

oS
, S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

co
lle

ag
ue

s

10
G

P
C

C
11

D
ev

el
op

 g
re

at
er

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 G

P
C

C
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

, e
ng

ag
e 

ch
ie

f o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
t E

xe
c 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 w

id
en

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 J
S

N
A

 w
ith

 G
P

s 
(L

in
k 

to
 H

S
M

 In
te

ll 
W

or
kp

la
n)

12
D

ev
el

op
 g

re
at

er
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f G

P
 d

at
a 

an
d 

ex
pl

or
e 

ho
w

 th
is

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

at
a,

 c
an

 b
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d
an

d 
us

ed
 in

no
va

tiv
el

y 
(L

in
k 

to
 H

S
M

 In
te

ll 
W

or
kp

la
n)

13
W

or
k 

 w
ith

 c
ol

le
ag

ue
s 

to
 c

re
at

e 
jo

in
t/c

om
bi

ne
d 

G
P

 C
lu

st
er

 J
S

N
A

s 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
(L

in
k 

to
 H

S
M

 In
te

ll
W

or
kp

la
n)

14
W

or
k 

w
ith

 L
ea

d 
G

P
s 

fo
r 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 to
 s

ee
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f w
id

er
 J

S
N

A
 a

w
ar

en
es

s,
 u

se
, a

nd
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ith
/fo

r 
G

P
s/

G
P

C
C

15
D

ev
el

op
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
(a

lig
ne

d 
to

 J
S

N
A

 p
ro

du
ct

s)
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

C
on

so
rt

ia
's

, B
oa

rd
s,

 G
P

s
Lo

ca
l C

lu
st

er
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

es

16
R

es
ea

rc
h

 &
 In

te
lli

g
en

ce
 G

ro
u

p

17
R

e-
in

vi
go

ra
te

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
or

m
an

t W
irr

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

&
 In

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
G

ro
up

 o
ffe

rin
g 

it 
ad

de
d 

pu
rp

os
e 

 fo
r

JS
N

A
 (

Li
nk

 to
 H

S
M

 In
te

ll 
W

or
kp

la
n)

18
 D

ev
el

op
 K

no
w

le
dg

e 
B

an
k 

/W
ar

eh
ou

se
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
(a

lig
ne

d 
to

 In
st

an
t A

tla
s 

W
eb

 S
er

ve
r

op
tio

n)
 fo

r 
ot

he
rs

 to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

. C
ov

er
s 

pu
bl

ic
al

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

da
ta

 s
o 

w
id

en
in

g
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y,
 n

ew
 s

ou
rc

es
, a

nd
 g

re
at

er
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

19
P

o
te

n
ti

al
 U

se
rs

20
E

xp
lo

re
 o

pt
io

ns
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

a 
ne

w
 u

se
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ne
tw

or
ks

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

on
ta

ct
s,

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
co

lle
ag

ue
s,

 d
ev

el
op

 c
lo

se
r 

lin
ks

 to
 C

ou
nc

il
w

eb
si

te
 a

nd
 in

tr
an

et
 s

ys
te

m
 a

s 
ex

am
pl

es

21
W

eb
si

te
22

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
cc

es
s,

 Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 r

ev
ie

w
 to

ol
s,

 U
nd

er
st

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 p
re

fe
re

nc
es

 o
f s

ite
 u

se
rs

an
d 

of
fe

r 
th

em
 b

es
po

ke
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
pt

io
ns

, W
id

en
 in

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
el

em
en

ts
.

23
JS

N
A

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 &

 T
ra

in
in

g
 P

la
n

24
E

xi
st

in
g

 U
se

rs

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 29



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

25
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
 o

n 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 d

ev
is

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 a
cc

es
s

26
In

fr
eq

u
en

t 
u

se
rs

27
C

on
si

de
r 

w
ha

t n
ew

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
m

ay
 e

xi
st

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 to
en

ab
le

 th
is

28
P

o
te

n
ti

al
 U

se
rs

29
F

in
d 

ou
t w

ho
, m

ee
t, 

di
sc

us
s 

an
d 

th
en

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 in

fr
eq

ue
nt

 u
se

rs
 to

 d
ef

in
e 

ho
w

 a
nd

 w
ha

t w
ou

ld
cr

ea
te

 r
eg

ul
ar

 u
se

 o
f J

S
N

A
, g

re
at

er
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

JS
N

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 J

S
N

A
 in

fu
tu

re

30
S

u
b

sc
ri

b
er

s 
an

d
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
ll/

n
ew

 d
at

a 
(D

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g

)

31
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t r

el
ev

an
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

cr
os

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y
of

 th
e 

JS
N

A
 a

nd
 jo

in
t i

nt
el

lig
en

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

32
E

m
ai

l J
S

N
A

 B
u

lle
ti

n

33
C

re
at

e 
w

id
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t o

f o
nl

in
e 

da
ta

 a
cc

es
s.

 D
ev

el
op

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f i
nt

er
es

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

ne
ed

s
of

 d
at

a,
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
an

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e.

 C
re

at
e 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. U
nd

er
pi

n
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f H

W
B

B
 C

om
m

s 
P

la
n

34
L

at
es

t 
D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 (

L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll 

W
o

rk
p

la
n

)

35
N

ew
 D

at
a

36
W

or
k 

w
ith

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f p

re
vi

ou
s,

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 d

at
a 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 p
op

ul
at

e 
JS

N
A

 o
n 

its
 it

er
at

iv
e

jo
ur

ne
y 

(L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll 

W
or

kp
la

n)

37
JS

N
A

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 f

o
r 

d
el

iv
er

in
g

 r
ef

re
sh

ed
 d

o
cu

m
en

t

38
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 th

e 
JS

N
A

 d
at

a 
se

t f
or

 o
ng

oi
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

co
nt

in
uo

us
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f d

at
a 

flo
w

s

39
F

or
m

al
is

e 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

f d
at

a 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 in
 J

S
N

A
 (

tim
in

g,
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y,
 in

te
gr

at
io

n)
 (

F
eb

 1
1/

 J
ul

y 
11

)

40
F

ul
ly

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

gr
ea

te
r 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

JS
N

A
 d

at
a 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
m

os
t a

cc
ur

at
e 

cu
rr

en
t

JS
N

A
 d

oc
um

en
t

41
V

er
si

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

42
P

ro
vi

de
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 th

at
 o

ffe
rs

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
la

te
st

 d
at

a 
in

to
 a

 n
ew

er
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ch
ap

te
r 

or
 s

ec
tio

n

43
JS

N
A

 D
at

a 
R

ev
ie

w
 (

L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll 

W
o

rk
p

la
n

)

44
C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

co
lla

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

da
ta

 n
ee

ds
 a

cr
os

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ith

ex
pe

rt
is

e 
e.

g.
 P

C
T

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l P

la
n,

 C
ou

nc
il 

C
or

po
ra

te

45
D

es
cr

ib
es

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
ne

w
 d

at
a 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e

re
vi

ew
 o

f d
at

a 
ne

ed
s

46
B

ui
ld

 u
po

n 
JS

N
A

 D
at

a 
R

ev
ie

w
 P

la
n 

(r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
ne

w
 d

at
a 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
)

to
 r

eq
ue

st
 w

he
re

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
an

d 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 th

at
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
re

 a
lig

ne
d

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 30



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

47
JS

N
A

 D
at

a 
R

ev
ie

w
 (

T
ra

ck
in

g
) 

(L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll 

W
o

rk
p

la
n

)

48
P

ro
vi

de
 s

ys
te

m
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

at
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

w
he

re
 J

S
N

A
 b

as
el

in
e 

da
ta

 w
ill

/h
as

/h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

al
l p

ar
tn

er
s 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

49
C

re
at

e 
re

co
rd

 o
f p

ar
tn

er
 u

sa
ge

 &
 r

ef
er

en
ci

ng
 o

f J
S

N
A

 
50

E
na

bl
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

fu
tu

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

JS
N

A
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

th
ei

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n
m

ak
in

g

51
JS

N
A

 M
in

im
u

m
 D

at
a 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 P
ro

ce
ss

52
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 k

no
w

n 
w

or
k 

th
at

 c
on

ta
in

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
da

ta
se

t i
nc

lu
si

on
s 

fr
om

 J
S

N
A

 C
ol

la
te

 k
no

w
n 

da
ta

in
cl

us
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
JS

N
A

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f n
ee

ds

53
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 k

no
w

n 
ne

ed
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 e

le
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
ct

io
ne

d 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
m

an
ne

r

54
S

tr
ea

m
lin

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
 th

at
 is

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 d

em
an

ds
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 o
f o

th
er

s

55
K

n
o

w
le

d
g

e 
B

an
k/

W
ar

eh
o

u
se

(L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll 

W
o

rk
p

la
n

)
56

C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
lle

ag
ue

s 
to

 d
ep

os
it 

re
le

va
nt

 d
at

a 
to

 W
irr

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d

w
ith

dr
aw

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

– 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 to
 u

se
 a

s 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t a
nd

 a
cc

ur
at

e

57
T

hr
ou

gh
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n,

 G
re

at
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f p

ar
tn

er
s/

R
 &

 I 
le

ad
s 

&
 G

ro
up

 -
Im

pr
ov

ed
/d

ef
in

ed
 d

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

&
 W

id
er

 r
es

ou
rc

e

58
Im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

be
tte

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

&
 u

se
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
&

 in
te

lli
ge

nc
e

59
U

si
ng

 In
st

an
t A

tla
s 

W
eb

 S
er

ve
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 h

ol
di

ng
 p

oi
nt

 fo
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 p
ub

lic
al

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

da
ta

60
A

m
en

d
ed

 a
n

d
 n

ew
 a

n
al

ys
is

61
A

sk
 p

re
vi

ou
s/

cu
rr

en
t d

at
a 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 u
pd

at
e 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
 d

at
a

62
D

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 V
is

io
n

63
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 B
o

ar
d

64
JS

N
A

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ou

tw
ar

d 
im

pe
tu

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

JS
N

A
 is

em
be

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

- 
so

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
d 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

un
de

rp
in

s 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g
an

d 
w

id
er

 w
or

k

65
JS

N
A

 R
is

ks
 &

 Is
su

es
 L

o
g

66
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 is

su
es

 -
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 c
ol

le
ag

ue
s 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 d

ef
in

e 
w

ha
t r

is
ks

 a
nd

 is
su

es
 a

nd
pl

an
 to

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 p
la

ns
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 -
 In

fo
rm

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss

67
P

la
n 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 im

pa
ct

s 
- 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 p

ot
en

tia
l –

 c
re

at
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

im
pa

ct
s,

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
r 

po
si

tiv
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

68
R

ev
ie

w
 o

ut
co

m
es

 a
nd

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
- 

C
ha

ng
es

 th
at

 o
cc

ur
 a

re
 m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 p

la
ns

 r
ef

le
ct

ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad

e

69
E

xt
er

n
al

 &
 In

te
rn

al
 im

p
et

u
s 

(l
eg

is
la

ti
o

n
, p

eo
p

le
, d

em
an

d
)

70
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
, w

hy
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 th
e 

JS
N

A
 c

an
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 a
ny

ad
ve

rs
e 

ou
tc

om
es

71
JS

N
A

 F
u

tu
re

 P
o

lic
y 

&
 G

u
id

an
ce

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 31



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

72
R

ev
ie

w
 n

ew
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 fo

r 
cu

rr
en

t a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 J

S
N

A
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

O
ng

oi
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 d
em

an
ds

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 J

S
N

A
 le

ad
s.

 G
iv

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 o

th
er

s 
w

ith
 u

p 
to

da
te

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 p

ol
ic

y 
ec

id
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 J

S
N

A

73
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
JS

N
A

 u
se

 a
n

d
  d

er
iv

ed
 b

en
ef

it
s

74
F

or
 th

e 
JS

N
A

, u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
he

re
 a

nd
 h

ow
, a

nd
 a

da
pt

 to
 w

id
en

 b
en

ef
its

 fo
r 

ot
he

rs
 -

 Q
ue

st
io

ni
ng

pr
ev

io
us

, c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

l u
se

rs
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f m
ed

ia

75
R

ev
ie

w
 o

th
er

 J
S

N
A

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

ad
ap

te
d 

to
 m

ee
t w

id
er

 n
ee

ds
 -

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 th

ro
ug

h
be

tte
r 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
&

 u
se

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

&
 in

te
lli

ge
nc

e

76
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 B
o

ar
d

 (
se

e 
la

te
r 

ta
sk

)
77

E
ns

ur
e 

JS
N

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

fo
rm

s 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f H

W
B

B

78
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
79

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 o

f p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 e
ns

ur
e

JS
N

A
 is

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
es

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
 a

 ti
m

el
y 

m
an

ne
r.

80
S

et
 u

p 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

an
d 

au
th

or
s,

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 a

ll.

81
D

ev
el

o
p

in
g

 C
u

lt
u

re
 (

st
ag

e 
1)

82
W

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s,
 c

ha
ng

e 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

, c
ol

la
bo

ra
te

 o
n 

da
ta

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s,
 a

nd
de

ve
lo

p 
ne

w
 w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng

83
H

ea
lt

h
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 B
o

ar
d

84
E

n
su

re
 J

S
N

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

o
lla

te
s 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g

 t
o

 W
ir

ra
l p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 in

fo
rm

 f
u

tu
re

 H
W

B
B

ac
ti

vi
ty

85
P

ro
vi

de
 a

na
ly

si
s 

in
 a

 ti
m

el
y 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

an
ne

r 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g

86
S

up
po

rt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 H

W
B

B
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ct
iv

ity
 th

at
 in

cl
ud

es
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t
ac

ro
ss

 W
irr

al
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
JS

N
A

 k
ey

 is
su

es
87

E
n

su
re

 J
S

N
A

 in
fo

rm
s 

H
&

W
B

 B
o

ar
d

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

s 
o

f 
lik

el
y 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 f

o
r 

th
en

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
si

n
g

 in
 J

o
in

t
H

W
B

 S
tr

at
eg

y
88

S
up

po
rt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

at
io

n 
of

 H
W

B
B

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fr

om
 k

ey
 is

su
es

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 s

tr
at

eg
y

89
U

se
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

an
d 

la
te

st
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
- 

su
ch

 L
G

ID
S

pr
in

gb
oa

rd
 to

 A
ct

io
n

90
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
Jo

in
t 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
n

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y

91
P

ro
vi

d
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 H

W
B

B
 in

 d
ev

el
o

p
in

g
 J

H
W

B
 S

tr
at

eg
y

92
P

ro
vi

de
 d

at
a 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 H

W
B

B
 th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

cu
rr

ne
t p

os
iti

on
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 a
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ub

je
ct

 a
re

as
93

W
or

k 
w

ith
 D

P
H

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 J

S
N

A
 E

xe
c 

B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 d
ec

id
e 

ho
w

 J
S

N
A

 K
ey

 Is
su

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 H
W

B
B

94
P

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 u
se

 d
ef

in
ed

 H
W

B
B

 p
ro

ce
ss

 th
at

 e
ng

ag
es

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

, o
rg

an
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 's

en
so

r 
ch

ec
k'

 w
ha

t a
re

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
os

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

95
A

ss
is

t H
W

B
B

 to
 d

ef
in

e 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

(k
ee

pi
ng

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f k

ey
 is

su
es

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

du
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s)

96
P

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 H
W

B
B

 a
s 

it 
dr

af
ts

 J
oi

nt
 H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 k

ey
is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

in
ed

 lo
ca

l p
rio

rit
ie

s

97
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ta
l

98
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t

(s
ta

g
e 

2)
99

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 li

n
k 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
 e

xi
st

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 p
o

in
ts

 o
f 

co
n

ta
ct

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 32



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

10
0

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 s

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
w

id
er

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 J
S

N
A

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
es

e 
ro

ut
es

.

10
1

P
la

n 
re

si
de

nt
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 li
nk

s 
to

 J
S

N
A

 th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rt

ne
r 

co
nt

ac
t r

ou
te

s
10

2
W

id
er

 a
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 J
S

N
A

 d
at

a

10
3

V
C

F
 s

ec
to

rs
10

4
R

ev
is

it 
pr

ev
io

us
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

or
k 

an
d 

lo
ok

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 o

pt
io

ns
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. C
on

si
de

r 
cu

rr
en

t
m

on
ito

rin
g 

da
ta

 b
ei

ng
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 b
y/

fo
r 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 a

lig
n 

to
 J

S
N

A
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
w

or
k

10
5

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ec
to

r 
le

ad
s 

to
 e

xp
re

ss
 J

S
N

A
 a

s 
a 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

or
k 

an
d 

w
ith

in
fu

tu
re

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
as

 m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t

10
6

E
xp

lo
ri

n
g

 n
ew

 n
ee

d
s 

an
d

 a
sp

ir
at

io
n

s
10

7
W

or
k 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 n
ew

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 n

ew
 d

at
a 

ac
ce

ss
,

re
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
re

co
rd

in
g 

- 
al

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 a
n 

ite
ra

tiv
e 

JS
N

A
 th

at
 le

ad
s 

to
 b

et
te

r 
E

B
D

M

10
8

E
st

ab
lis

h
ed

 r
o

u
te

s 
an

d
 c

o
lle

ct
iv

e 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

es
10

9
U

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

JS
N

A
 d

at
a 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
or

k 
- 

an
d 

em
be

d 
th

es
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

m
et

ho
ds

 -
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 g
re

at
er

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 c

la
rit

y 
of

 w
or

k

11
0

E
xt

en
d

 u
se

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
ar

tn
er

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
11

1
E

xt
en

d 
us

e 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ar

tn
er

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 in
tr

od
uc

e 
JS

N
A

 to
 n

ew
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 fu
tu

re
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 J
S

N
A

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
ei

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

11
2

S
h

ar
in

g
g

o
o

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

11
3

D
ev

el
op

 s
ys

te
m

at
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f b

es
t J

S
N

A
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ac
ro

ss
 W

irr
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

s 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

an
d

fu
tu

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

11
4

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 h
ow

 J
S

N
A

 c
an

 s
up

po
rt

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
pr

ov
is

io
n

11
5

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

JS
N

A
 E

n
g

ag
em

en
t

11
6

R
ec

or
d 

en
ga

gm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
, o

ut
co

m
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 -

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

cc
ru

e 
- 

to
 b

ot
h

in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

ie
nc

es
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d
11

7
P

ro
vi

de
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

r 
JS

N
A

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 N

H
S

 W
irr

al
 P

P
I A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t p

ro
ce

ss

11
8

F
u

tu
re

 J
S

N
A

11
9

L
o

ca
lis

m
 &

 B
ig

 S
o

ci
et

y
12

0
P

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f l

oc
al

is
m

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
12

1
E

nh
an

ce
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 a
re

a 
pl

an
s 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 w

id
er

 lo
ca

l d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d
pr

ov
is

io
n

12
2

In
fo

rm
in

g
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s,
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
la

n
s 

an
d

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
12

3
P

ro
vi

de
 s

ys
te

m
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

at
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

w
he

re
 J

S
N

A
 b

as
el

in
e 

da
ta

 h
as

/h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 a
ll

pa
rt

ne
rs

 p
ol

ic
y,

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

12
4

P
ro

sp
ec

tiv
e 

sc
he

du
le

 o
f m

aj
or

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

ol
ic

y,
 a

nd
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
w

or
k 

so
 d

ire
ct

in
g 

tim
el

y 
co

nt
ac

t
w

ith
 J

S
N

A

12
5

D
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

re
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s,
 p

la
ns

, p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ha

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
, o

r 
no

t, 
its

 e
xp

ec
te

d
ou

tc
om

es

12
6

O
ng

oi
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l d

em
an

ds
 –

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

JS
N

A
le

ad
s

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 33



ID
T

as
k 

N
am

e

12
7

M
o

d
el

lin
g

 T
o

o
ls

12
8

D
ev

el
op

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s 

us
e 

of
 m

od
el

lin
g 

to
ol

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ot

he
r 

as
pe

ct
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 a
nd

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t

12
9

Jo
in

ed
 u

p
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
13

0
P

la
n 

to
 a

lig
n 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 s
o 

th
at

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
pl

an
 a

nd
 a

ct
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
el

y 
- 

so
 o

ut
co

m
es

re
co

gn
is

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
, i

nt
el

lig
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s

13
1

W
id

er
 f

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

JS
N

A
 le

ad
s 

g
ro

u
p

13
2

C
on

ta
ct

 c
ol

le
ag

ue
s 

- 
D

ef
in

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 -

 M
ee

t w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 -
 L

in
k 

to
 C

H
A

M
P

S
 -

 C
on

si
de

r
fu

tu
re

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

JS
N

A
 -

 S
ha

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d

13
3

B
re

ad
th

 &
 d

ep
th

13
4

W
or

k 
w

ith
 J

S
N

A
 E

xe
c 

B
oa

rd
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 o

f J
S

N
A

 d
at

a 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 a

s 
to

 w
he

re
 it

 c
ov

er
s 

a
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 it

 d
el

ve
s 

de
ep

er
 in

to
 is

su
es

 th
at

 a
re

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

as
 a

 lo
ca

l p
rio

rit
y 

- 
B

oa
rd

m
em

be
rs

 g
iv

in
g 

th
at

 d
ire

ct
io

n

13
5

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

&
 A

u
th

o
rs

13
6

W
or

k 
w

ith
 r

an
ge

 o
f c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

al
l c

an
 a

nd
 d

o 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
JS

N
A

 p
ro

ce
ss

so
 th

at
 it

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
oc

um
en

t -
 th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 w

he
re

 e
ve

ry
on

e
pu

ts
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
- 

w
ha

te
ve

r 
th

ei
r 

ko
w

le
dg

e 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

a

13
7

G
u

id
an

ce
, a

n
al

ys
is

 a
n

d
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
13

8
D

ev
el

op
 c

le
ar

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f p
re

vi
ou

s,
 c

ur
re

nt
, f

ut
ur

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- 

th
at

 s
ha

pe
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 J

S
N

A
w

or
k 

ac
tiv

ity

13
9

P
la

ce
 b

as
ed

 b
u

d
g

et
s

14
0

C
on

si
de

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 J

S
N

A
 p

la
ys

 p
iv

ot
al

 r
ol

e 
in

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

ah
ea

d 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
m

ak
in

g 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
de

ci
si

on
s

14
1

C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 In
te

lli
g

en
ce

14
2

D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 &
 V

is
io

n
 (

st
ag

e 
3)

14
3

B
u

si
n

es
s 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 a

lig
n

m
en

t
14

4
A

lig
n 

re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

re
fr

es
he

s 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ea
so

n 
- 

th
is

 w
ou

ld
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

bu
si

ne
ss

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

JS
N

A
 -

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

le
ad

s 
to

 a
ct

 u
po

n

14
5

Jo
in

t 
In

te
lli

g
en

ce
14

6
S

up
po

rt
 D

A
S

S
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 O
ut

co
m

es
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k,
 D

at
a 

C
ap

tu
re

 &
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

(L
in

k 
to

 H
S

M
 In

te
ll

W
or

kp
la

n)

14
7

O
ve

r 
pe

rio
d 

of
 J

S
N

A
 -

 w
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 d
at

a,
 in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 th

at
 is

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
an

d
as

si
gn

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y

14
8

O
u

r 
JS

N
A

14
9

O
ne

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 -

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 h
av

e 
no

w
 ta

ke
n 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 p
ro

ce
ss

 -
 c

on
te

nt
 -

 m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

as
se

ss
m

en
t

15
0

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t
(s

ta
g

e 
3)

15
1

C
o

lle
ct

iv
e 

&
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s 

en
g

ag
em

en
t

15
2

W
or

k 
w

ith
 r

an
ge

 o
f c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

JS
N

A
 h

as
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 p
ro

ce
ss

 th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 r
an

ge
 o

f
co

lle
ag

ue
s,

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 -
 s

o 
en

su
rin

g 
be

st
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 b

es
t a

na
ly

si
s

an
d 

be
st

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
cu

rr
en

t a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

01
/1

1
16

/0
5

28
/1

1
11

/0
6

24
/1

2
20

11
20

12
20

13

T
as

k

S
pl

it

P
ro

gr
es

s

M
ile

st
on

e

S
um

m
ar

y

P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y

E
xt

er
na

l T
as

ks

E
xt

er
na

l M
ile

st
on

e

D
ea

dl
in

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
2

P
ro

je
ct

: L
at

es
t p

ro
je

ct
D

at
e:

 T
hu

 0
8/

12
/1

1

Page 34



Appendix 3 
    

Local Government Improvement and DevelopmentLocal Government Improvement and DevelopmentLocal Government Improvement and DevelopmentLocal Government Improvement and Development    
    

Latest Guidance Latest Guidance Latest Guidance Latest Guidance –––– LGID Springboard into action LGID Springboard into action LGID Springboard into action LGID Springboard into action    
    

July 2011July 2011July 2011July 2011    
    

Extract taken from Extract taken from Extract taken from Extract taken from documentdocumentdocumentdocument    
    
Key message:  
 
Whilst the potential value of a JSNA is clear, each process requires local design 
beyond the basic essentials. Take ownership and lead a review from first 
principles.  
 
Experience shows that the most effective JSNAs have considered a number of 
key issues that have to be resolved when designing their JSNA process. We 
have developed these issues into seven quality themes to assist emerging health 
and wellbeing boards in deciding on their JSNA approach. 
    
Take stock Take stock Take stock Take stock     
• Learn from the past – review your existing JSNA process and strategic 

partnerships.  
 
Ask big questions Ask big questions Ask big questions Ask big questions     
• Agree the scope and mandate for the JSNA process going forward. 
• Know your audience. Agree the users of your JSNA and what they need 

from the process.  
• Build trust and agree a shared process of strategic priority setting through 

your JSNA and JHWS.  
 
Go into further detail Go into further detail Go into further detail Go into further detail     
• Match form to function and specify your JSNA products.  
• Secure the capacity, skills, data and knowledge needed to deliver your 

JSNA.  
 
Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate     
• Agree governance and consolidate your vision into a clear specification  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



WWIIRRRRAALL  SSHHAADDOOWW  HHEEAALLTTHH  &&  WWEELLLLBBEEIINNGG  BBOOAARRDD  
 
Meeting Date 14 December 2011 Agenda Item 7 
 
Report Title Developing effective communications  
Responsible Board 
Member 

Director of Public Health 

 
Board development  
   

ü 

JSNA/JHWS  

Health and social care 
integrated commissioning or 
provision 

 

Link To Shadow HWB 
Function 

Other (please specify, referring 
to the TOR) 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 
Required & Attached 

Yes  No  N/A ü 

Purpose For 
approval 

ü To note  To 
assure 

 

 
Summary of Paper Communication of Health & Wellbeing Board activities, and effective 

engagement of stakeholder and our local communities to inform the 
Board is a critical element of establishing a successful set of 
relationships to enable us to deliver our aspirations to improve health 
and wellbeing outcomes on Wirral.  This paper proposes the 
development of a communications plan for the Board, supported by 
partner communications leads 
Total financial 
implication 

New investment 
required 

Source of investment (e.g. 
name of budget) 

Financial 
Implications 

Time of staff 
involved 

  

Risks and 
Preventive 
Measures 

There is a risk that work streams and commissioning plans gain little 
wider ownership beyond the membership of the Health & Wellbeing 
Board, and that interested parties are unable to contribute to, or find out 
about the work of the Board.  We will establish a website, but this is 
only one method of communication and will not meet the needs of a 
diverse community.  We will therefore develop a communications plan 
which will scope the effective methods of communication and make 
recommendations for members’ approval. 

Details of Any 
Public/Patient/ 
Service User 
Engagement 

None at this point.   

Recommendations/
Next Steps 

The Board is recommended to agree that: 
 
1.        Communications Leads from partner organisations should be 

asked to form a network supporting the Health & Wellbeing 
Board 

 
2. That this network be tasked with producing a set of proposals 

which will form the basis of a communications plan for approval 
by the Board. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



 
Report History 
Submitted to: Date: Summary of outcome: 
Has not been submitted 
elsewhere 

  

   
List of 
Appendices 

None 

 
Yes ü Yes  Publish On 

Website No  
Private Business 

No ü 
  
Report Author(s): Fiona Johnstone, Director of Public Health 
 
Contact details: Public Health Directorate 
   Old Market House 
   Hamilton Street 

Birkenhead 
Wirral CH41 5FL 

  
email: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk 
tel:  0151 651 3914 

Page 38



 
HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
 
1. Introduction 
 
Health & Wellbeing Boards will occupy an important place in local communities as the forum 
for establishing aspirations for improving health and wellbeing outcomes based on an 
understanding of needs and assets.   
 
A wide range of stakeholders will be involved in, or interested in the work of the Board, and 
good communications will be at the heart of ensuring that they remain engaged and able to 
help to shape the future.   
 
2. Proposal for a Communications Plan 
 
There will be many ways in which the Board wishes to communicate on different issues and 
with different people.  We need to develop a means by which we are clear who our 
audiences are; what channels of communication we currently have in place across the 
partnership; how these might best be used; how we not only communicate outwards, but 
how we also receive communications. 
 
We should also consider how we can overcome barriers to communication, such as being 
clear about our aims and objectives in communicating; what our key messages are; and 
whether we are using the right mechanisms for communicating with what will be a very 
diverse audience. 
 
Formal minutes, agenda and papers for the Board will be placed on Wirral Council’s 
meetings section of their website.  However we might wish to consider whether we would 
want to develop a website that is able to deliver additional functionality in the long-term.  This 
could include an evidence resource, message boards, ‘what’s on’; ‘Apps’ for keeping healthy 
and promoting wellbeing, as well as linking opportunities or services available for use by 
people in Wirral. 
 
Across our organisations we have staff who are skilled in communications, and it is 
proposed that we should bring these staff together to form a network which can support the 
work of the Board, without necessarily incurring any additional cost other than their time.  
One of the benefits of this will be that we will have a means of understanding what current 
communications channels exist, and which suit particular types of communication. 
 
This would link into our aspirations to develop good engagement models, and to our 
understanding of the needs and assets of our communities. 
 
If agreed, this network should be tasked with developing an outline communications plan 
that will be brought back to the Board for consideration. 
 
Board members are asked to nominate appropriate communications leads to form the 
network, and to consider whether there are any other particular communications issues that 
they would like to be explored within the remit of developing a communications plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Terms of Reference
	5 Shadow Board Development Plan
	6 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment / Joint Health and Well Being Strategy Workstream
	JSNA Appendix 1
	JSNA Appendix 2 revised
	JSNA Appendix 3

	7 Developing Effective Communications

